



# COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND 2016/2017 ANNUAL REPORT







Hon Natasha Fyles MLA Attorney General and Minister for Justice GPO Box 3146 DARWIN NT 0801

Dear Minister

In accordance with section 68B (4) of the *Gaming Control Act*, I present to you the Community Benefit Fund Annual Report for 2016-17. The Annual Report details the operations of the Community Benefit Committee during the financial year, including full listings of grant recipients and purposes.

I would like to thank and acknowledge the effort and dedication provided by three committee members whose tenure expired shortly after the years end. Ms Sharon Wilson, both as past chair and member, Ms Jennifer Lillis and Ms Vicki O'Halloran AM provided valuable contributions to the committee with their commitment to their community being ever present.

I would also like to highlight one of the many success stories from the CBF. During the year construction was completed on the Barkly Goldrush Arena Development in Tennant Creek. This project constructed permanent shade structures as well as lighting to the arena. Feedback from the organisation has indicated that since the completion of the development a significant increase in participation has noted.

In conclusion the Community Benefit Fund is providing much need support to a variety of non-for-profit organisations. The committee looks forward to the coming year working within a more focussed framework.

Yours sincerely

Annette Gillanders

Chair

Community Benefit Fund Committee

# **Contents**

Highlights	1
Table 1: Community Benefit Fund Summary of Actual Cash Flow 2016-17	1
Community Benefit Fund	2
Administrative Responsibility	2
Committee Membership and Meetings	3
Industry Contribution to Community Benefit Fund	4
Community Benefit Fund Levy – Casinos and Licensed Hotels	4
Community Support Contributions – Licensed Clubs	4
Gambling Amelioration Grants	5
Gambling Research	6
Major Community Organisation Grants	6
Table 2: Major Grants approved in 2016-17 – Summary by Region	6
Small Community Organisation Grants	7
Table 3: Small Grants approved in 2016-17 – Summary by Region	7
Quick Grants	7
Vehicle Gift and Long Term Loans	8
Table 4: Vehicle Gift/Long Term Loan Approvals	8
Table 5: Major Community Organisation Grants Approved in 2016-17	9
Table 6: Small Community Organisation Grants Approved in 2016-17	12
Table 7: Quick Grants Approved in 2016-17	20
Table 8: Community Support Contributions from Licensed Clubs	22

# Community Benefit Fund Committee Annual Report 2016-17

# Highlights

- The Community Benefit Fund received \$11.117 million from the levy on electronic gaming machines in casinos and hotels during 2016-17.
- \$2.012 million was spent on gambling amelioration grants.
- \$4.967 million was spent on major community grants.
- \$1.477 million was spent on community organisations grants.
- Eleven vehicle gifts were approved.

Table 1: Community Benefit Fund Summary of Actual Cash Flow 2016-17

Revenue and Payments	Sub Total \$	Total \$
Opening Balance at 1 July 2016	2 851 581	
Revenue – Community Benefit Levy	11 117 395	
Revenue - Returned Grants	52 488	
Total Revenue		14 021 464
Payments:		
Gambling Amelioration Grants	2 012 326	
Gambling Research Grants	686 112	
Community Organisation Grants	1 476 988	
Major Community Grants	4 966 649	
Quick Grants	470 560	
Vehicle Gifts / Long Term Loans	347 372	
Total Grants allocated	9 960 007	
Administration	451 954	
Total Expenditure		10 411 961
Closing balance at 30 June 2017*		3 609 503

<sup>\*</sup> Closing balance includes funds that have been committed but are yet to be paid.

#### **Community Benefit Fund**

The Community Benefit Fund was established to provide funding support for gambling-related research and amelioration programs concerned with problem gambling, as well as community benefit grants which provide assistance for general community development and improvement purposes.

Section 68A of the Gaming Control Act, provides that:

- (1) the Director-General must maintain in the Agency's Operating Account a fund to be known as the Community Benefit Fund; and
- (2) moneys in the Community Benefit Fund are to be applied for the following purposes:
  - a. research into gambling activity, including the social and economic impact of gambling on individuals, families and the community;
  - b. promotion of community awareness and education in respect of problem gambling and provision of counselling, rehabilitation and support services for problem gamblers and their families in the Territory;
  - c. funding of community projects and services of benefit to communities throughout the Territory; and
  - d. management and administrative support of the Fund.

The Fund receives a 10% levy on player loss from electronic gaming machines in casinos and licensed hotels, unclaimed prizes paid to the Director of Licensing and proceeds from items forfeited under the *Gaming Control Act*. Each year the responsible minister determines how this money will be distributed by the fund in terms of gambling amelioration, small and major community organisation grants and administration of the Fund.

The responsibility for assessing applications for funding falls on the Community Benefit Committee ('the Committee') which has been established to advise and assist the Minister responsible for the operation of the Fund.

The Committee also advises the Minister on the obligations of Territory licensed clubs with regard to the provision of direct community benefit contributions to their local communities, as required under the *Gaming Machine Act*.

# Administrative responsibility

Under the *Gaming Control Act* (the Act), the Director-General has responsibility to maintain the Community Benefit Fund (the Fund). The Director-General's duties in relation to the Fund can be broadly summarised as:

- maintaining the CBF in the agency operating account
- determining the revenue of the CBF through assessing gaming machine levy
- monitoring and reporting on club community contributions
- approving funds for gambling related research.

Licensing NT, a division of the Department of Attorney-General and Justice, is responsible for the coordination, management and administration of the program. This includes secretariat and executive support to the Committee as well as promoting the Fund within the wider community. The secretariat is also responsible for the management of amelioration support and research activities, overall fund administration and general reporting of the program activities and progress to Government and other stakeholders.

## Committee membership and meetings

The Community Benefit Committee (the Committee) comprised of 14 community representatives and one government representative.

Community members of the Committee are appointed in an honorary capacity by the Minister. Nominal fees for attending Committee activities may be paid at the discretion of the Minister. Community members are also entitled to reimbursement for out of pocket expenses in meeting obligations arising from participation in Committee activities, consistent with normal government policy.

During 2016-17 the following members served on the CBF Committee for the periods listed below:

•	Annette Gillanders - Chair (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Charles Burkitt - Deputy Chair (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Sharon Wilson -Committee (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Vicki O'Halloran AM (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Jennifer Lillis (Alice Springs)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	David Koch (Alice Springs)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Nicole Walsh (Alice Springs)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Nathan Tam (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Bronwyn McRostie (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Deborah Fracaro (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Michael Adams (Tennant Creek)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Craig Jervis (Alice Springs)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Stuart Kenny (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
•	Tony Clementson (Katherine)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017

#### Government representatives:

•	Cindy Bravos (Darwin)	01 July 2016 - 30 June 2017
	Director-General of Licensing	

The Committee met on three occasions during 2016-17.

#### **Industry contribution to Community Benefit Fund**

The gambling industry is a major contributor to the Northern Territory economy, with significant investment, employment and taxation revenue effects. It is also a key element in the broader recreational, hospitality and tourism sectors.

However, the industry carries the potential for significant negative social consequences as a direct result of problem gambling aspects, particularly in regard to the operation of electronic gaming machines. To establish a responsible and balanced position for the industry, government requires this sector of the gambling industry to contribute to measures that address the adverse effects it created and, more generally, to improve the broader community environment within which the machines operate.

The required industry contribution is achieved in two ways:

- 1. through the imposition of a Community Benefit Fund levy on electronic gaming machine player losses from casinos and licensed hotels
- 2. by direct support to community improvement and development by licensed clubs operating electronic gaming machines.

#### Community Benefit Fund levy - casinos and licensed hotels

The Fund is established under the *Gaming Control Act* to consolidate and manage the Community Benefit Fund levy collected from the operation of electronic gaming machines in Casinos and licensed hotels. Funding is directed to specific areas of activity as specified in the legislation.

### Community support contributions - licensed clubs

As part of the arrangements for allowing gaming machines in community venues, clubs are required to make contributions to the local community and report those contributions on a regular basis. Guidelines exist to clarify what can be legitimately reported as a contribution.

Section 68B(2)(b) of the *Gaming Control Act* requires the Community Benefit Fund Committee 'to monitor the contribution that clubs that are licensees under the *Gaming Machine Act* make to the community'.

In 2016-17, community support contributions from licensed clubs totalled \$5.302 million, equating to 17% of net gaming machine revenue received. This represents an increase of 4% from the 2015-16 community support contributions, which totalled \$4.141 million, equating to 13% of net gaming machine revenue received. (Table 8 refers)

#### **Gambling Amelioration Grants**

The Gambling Amelioration Grants Program was established to support interventions that reduce problem gambling and minimise the harms that result from gambling. Interventions can range from community awareness and education programs through to the provision of counselling, rehabilitation or support services for problem gamblers and their families.

In 2016-17 eight gambling amelioration grants were funded a total of \$2 012 326 to provide gambling amelioration services. Three of these grants were multi-year agreements that had been awarded in 2015-16, while a fourth three year grant was awarded in 2016-17. The remaining four grants were all for one year:

#### Existing Multi-year grants

- Amity Community Services Incorporated received a three-year grant for a total of \$1 935 390 (\$644 350 in 2016-17) for their ongoing gambling harm minimisation service and education program, which includes individual assessment and counselling, maintenance of its website and the Gambling Counselling Helpline.
- Amity Community Services Incorporated received a three year grant for a total of \$610 000 (\$234 545 in 2016-17) to develop and trial a multi-venue self-exclusion system that is designed to supersede the current paper-based system and provide an easy one-stop-shop for an individual wishing to self-exclude from gaming venues.
- Somerville Community Services received a three-year grant for \$1 064 035 (\$354 397 in 2016-17) to continue its problem gambling financial counselling service in Darwin and Palmerston.

#### New Multi-year grant

• Somerville Community Services received a three year grant for \$374 012 (\$118,640 in 2016-17) to provide an additional counsellor for their problem gambling financial counselling service in Darwin and Palmerston.

#### Single year grants

- Amity Community Services received funding of \$140 426 to purchase hardware to support the Multi Venue Self Exclusion system they have been developing. This hardware will result in uniformity across the Territory and also reduce the impact of introducing the system to venues.
- Amity Community Services received funding of \$307 450 in conjunction with italk library to develop a Red Flag – Public Health Campaign. The project aims to raise awareness of Red Flag behaviours when gambling through visual storytelling and animation.
- Aboriginal Resource and Development Services Inc (ARDS) received \$32 517 to
  develop pokie problem gambling literacy for Yolnu. The project will produce a series
  of radio inteviews that address issues around poker machines such as their history,
  social impacts and regulations, how they work and support and advice. The interviews
  will be broadcast in Yolnu Matha.
- Australian Hotels Association NT Branch Inc received \$180 000 for a Responsible Service of Gambling Project. The project will develop training to complement the updated code of Practice for Responsible Gambling in the Northern Territory.

#### **Gambling research**

Three research projects received funding in 2016-17 totalling \$686,112. Two projects commenced in 2014-15. These projects are:

- In 2014-15 the Australian National University were successful in being awarded funding of \$300 000 (\$100 000 in 2016-17) to be paid over three financial years to expand the useability of 'Gambling Harm in the Northern Territory An Atlas of Venue Catchments'.
- In 2014-15 Menzies School of Health Research were successful in being awarded funding of \$536 364 (\$172 727 in 2016-17) to be paid over three financial years undertake the 2015 Northern Territory Gambling Prevalence Survey.
- In 2016-17 the Australian National University, Amity Community Services Inc and Menzies School of Health Research we successful in receiving funding of \$1 162 246 (\$413 385 in 2016-17) to develop and pilot a health promotion initiative addressing problem gambling in three remote indigenous communities.

#### **Major Community Organisation Grants**

The Major Community Grants Program was established in 2008-09 to provide funding support to not-for-profit Territory-based organisations for community development and improvement purposes. The maximum grant available for each project is \$200 000. In 2016-17 there were four rounds of Major Grants. A regional summary of the Major Grants can be found at Table 2 and a list of successful applicants can be found at Table 5.

Table 2: Major Community Organisation Grants approved in 2015-16 and 2016-17 - summary by region

Region	Applic Rece	ations eived		ount ested	Amo Appr	ount oved		nber oved
	2014- 15	2016- 17	2014-15	2016-17	2014-15	2016-17*	2014 -15	2016 -17*
Arnhem	17	21	2 277 065	2 661 567	249 786	236 610	4	3
Barkly	14	12	1 798 091	1 274 626	197 514	182 566	3	4
Central	50	31	5 315 583	3 018 079	1 157 911	250 320	16	7
Katherine	19	28	2 364 606	3 036 342	853 455	816 339	8	7
Multi- Region	68	39	7 387 701	3 580 191	845 413	332 558	15	8
Northern	140	134	14 874 319	10 766 136	3 241 085	1 808 329	51	28
Total	308	265	34 017 365	24 336 941	6 545 164	3 626 722	97	57

<sup>\*</sup> The outcome of round four was not known at the time of publishing. Results are indicative of three rounds only.

#### **Small Community Organisation Grants**

Community Organisation grants are available to support projects which have the potential to improve the wellbeing and lifestyle of Territorians. Funding for a wide range of purposes may be provided to eligible not-for-profit Territory-based community organisations.

The maximum amount that can be applied for is \$10 000. Funding is provided for non-recurrent expenditure and is available only for clearly identified projects which can be completed within specified time frames.

Greater consideration is given to priority issues such as level of existing community support and circumstances such as remoteness or high levels of socio-economic disadvantage. Preference is also given to requests for lower value amounts. This combined approach allows for an equitable distribution of available funds throughout the Northern Territory to as many worthwhile projects as possible.

Table 3 provides a regional summary of applications received and approved and a full list of successful applicants can be found at Table 5.

Table 3: Small Community Organisations Grants approved in 2015-16 and 2016-17 - summary by region

Region		ations eived	Amo Reque		Amo Appr	ount oved		nber oved
	2015- 16	2016- 17	2015-16	2016-17	2015-16	2016-17*	2015 -16	2016 -17*
Arnhem	11	16	85 153	124 693	75 153	79 078	10	10
Barkly	8	12	60 097	75 505	60 097	45 353	8	7
Central	52	47	361 259	324 550	246 373	137 206	39	23
Katherine	38	29	279 960	240 587	169 331	117 209	26	16
Multi- Region	52	37	399 637	223 940	234 382	107 067	33	21
Northern	259	242	1 684 696	1 662 593	1 379 937	797 213	225	113
Total	420	383	2 870 802	2 651 868	2 165 273	1 283 126	341	190

<sup>\*</sup> The outcome of round four was not known at the time of publishing. Results are indicative of three rounds only.

#### **Quick Grants**

Quick Grants are for applicants who require funding urgently and do not have time to wait for a normal Small or Major Grants round to be completed. There were 44 applications received in 2016-17 requesting a total of \$707 850 in funding. Thirty two applications were approved totalling \$523 500. A full list of successful applicants can be found below in Table 7.

#### **Vehicle Gift and Long-Term Loans**

The Community Benefit Committee considers applications for vehicle gifts and long-term loans and makes recommendations to the Minister. Applications for vehicle gifts or long-term loans are called for on a biannual basis with similar criteria to that of Community Organisation Grants. There were 33 vehicle gift applications received during 2016-17with 11 being approved. No long-term loan applications were received.

Table 4: Vehicle Gift / Long-Term Loan Approvals

Organisation	Region	Vehicle Gift
Barkly Landcare and Conservation Association Inc	Barkly	Utility 4wd - Hilux
Drug and Alcohol Services Australia LTD	Central	Utility 4wd - Hilux
Football Federation NT	Multi	Wagon 4wd
Gove Australian Football League Inc.	Arnhem	4wd Troopcarrier
Marthakal Homelands Resource Centre Aboriginal Corporation	Arnhem	4wd Troopcarrier
Miriam Rose Foundation Incorporated	Northern	Utility 4wd - Hilux
Northern Territory Cattlemen's Association	Multi	Wagon 4wd
PAWS Darwin	Northern	Utility 4wd - Hilux
The Royal Agricultural Society of the Northern Territory	Northern	Station Wagon 4 Cylinder
Top End Early Learning Centre Incorporated	Northern	Mini Bus
YWCA of Darwin	Northern	Medium Sedan

Table 5: Major Community Organisation Grants Approved in 2016-17

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$			
	ARNHEM				
Nhulunbuy BMX Club Inc.	Nhulunbuy BMX Track Major upgrades- Stage 2.	172 840			
Peppimenarti Association Incorporated	ECG Machine	13 770			
Tiwi Designs Aboriginal Corporation	Install a café and hospitality training centre at Tiwi Designs	50 000			
TOTAL ARNHEM		236 610			

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$			
	BARKLY				
National Trust of Australia (NT)	Upgrade of Tuxworth Fullwood House Museum - Tennant Creek	41 000			
Tennant Creek Cricket Association	Cover for cricket pitch in Tennant Creek	21 800			
Tennant Creek Golf Club	Major repairs to club house to conform with OH&S regulations and standards.	27 000			
Tennant Creek Senior Citizens & Pensioners Association	Improve facilities in seniors building	92 766			
TOTAL BARKLY		182 566			

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
	CENTRAL	
Alice Springs Theatre Group Inc	Totem Theatre Upgrades	46 026
Arid Lands Environment Centre Inc	Alice Springs Community Garden Kitchen and Office	63 000
Harts Range Amateur Race Club Incorporated	Provide additional Ablutions at Harts Range Race Course	20 000
Ikuntji Artists Aboriginal Corporation	Customised and multi-purpose trailer	22 728
Life Without Barriers	Transportation for Service Users with a Disability- Alice Springs	48 566
Ptilotus Press	Inland Writers series	20 000
The Central Australian Community Toy Library Inc	Mobile playgroups for special needs children in primary school	30 000
TOTAL CENTRAL		250 320

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
	KATHERINE	
Gurindji Aboriginal Corporation	To build a new multipurpose court to cater for basketball, netball, volleyball, tennis and other community activities	200 000
Gurrumul Yunupingu Foundation	2017 Barunga Festival – Music	50 000
Katherine and District Show Society Inc	Buntine Pavilion	172 727
Katherine Regional Arts Inc	Making and Screening Films in Far-away Places	31 946
Katherine RSL - Sub Branch	Katherine War Memorial	181 689
National Trust of Australia (NT) Gulf Branch	Caretaker and catering facility at Borroloola old police station museum.	57 816
Roper Gulf Regional Council	Upgrades to Bulman Youth Recreation Facilities	122 161
TOTAL KATHERINE		816 339

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
_	MULTI REGION	
Arafura Wind Ensemble Inc	Purchase of fully enclosed trailer to store and transport performance equipment	12 100
Asthma Foundation NT Inc	The Asthma Swim Program	57 580
Cancer Council of the Northern Territory	Volunteer Program Coordinator	120 000
CareFlight NT	Medical Equipment	20 000
Mission Australia Limited	Café One Coffee Trailer- Employment Skills Training for at risk young people.	72 193
Sustainable Couture	Sustainable Couture 2017	12 253
The Humour Foundation	Clown Doctors	18 432
Top End Association for Mental Health	TEAMhealth and Mind Blank: Top End Mental Health Tour	20 000
TOTAL MULTI REGION		322 558

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
NORTHERN		
1st Darwin Sea Scouts	Upgrade of Scout Hall - Temira Cres, Larrakeyah	193 263
Australian Trust for Conservation Volunteers	Revive Darwin's Wetland	70 500
Darwin City Brass Band Association Inc	Purchase and installation of a grid- connected solar panel system	11 350
Darwin Community Arts Inc	Malak Marketplace Electrical Upgrade	14 166

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Darwin Community Arts Inc	Community Shed (The Shed)	194 430
Darwin Film Society Inc	Cinema Speaker Upgrade	50 544
Darwin Tennis Association Inc	Modernising lighting at the Garden Tennis Centre	128 182
Dundee Social & Recreation Club Inc	An upgrade of the Children Playground	16 820
East Point Aero-Modellers Club Inc	Ride-on Mower Replacement - EPAC	25 999
Freds Pass Reserve Playgroup	Playground surfacing and shade structure with new play equipment	199 350
Friends of the North Australia Railway at Adelaide River Inc	Painting historic diesel-electric locomotive NSU 63 at Adelaide River	40 000
Hindu Society of NT	Building of a stage for performance	55 000
Humpty Doo Community & Childcare Centre	Flooring	34 400
Italian Festival Association Inc	2017 Darwin Italian Festival	60 000
Italian Sports and Social Club Inc	Infrastructure Refurbishment	194 335
McMinns Lagoon Reserve Association Inc	Safe and Secure Amenities for McMinns Lagoon	11 473
National Trust of Australia (NT)	Stahl Garden Lighting Project	54 100
North Australian Canine Association Inc T/S DogsNT	Tree lopping for safety and preventive tree maintained at the Winnellie Dog Show Grounds	13 145
Northern Territory Field and Game Association Incorporated	Two Shade Structures	44 530
NT Police & Citizens Youth Club Associations Inc	Certificate report- WEC structure	20 000
Palmerston & Rural Seniors Committee	Seniors Fortnight Event (Darwin Harbour Cruise & Dinner)	13 840
Robbie Robbins Reserve	Provision of a new mower - Ground  Maintenance	33 174
Smile a Mile Fun Bus and Toy Library Inc	Smile-A-Mile 30th Birthday Celebration 2017	15 977
Somerville Community Services Inc	Play Therapy Equipment and Fittings	10 257
The Darwin Festival Limited	Bums on Seats – Contribution to new Lighthouse venue chairs to increase community participation and enjoyment at Darwin Festival events	33 870
The Darwin Sailing Club Inc	Club Tractor Replacement Project	37 527
The Douglas Daly Community Development Association (TDDCDAI)	Establishing an enclosed Equine Facility	152 225
Touch Football Australia Incorporated	Touch Football Field Upgrades	79 872
TOTAL NORTHERN		1 808 329

TOTAL NORTHERN TERRITORY

3 626 722

**Table 6: Small Community Organisation Grants Approved in 2016-17** 

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
ARNHEM		
Gove Peninsula Surf Life Saving Club	Expansion of patrol and coastal surveillance capacity for Gove SLSC	3 100
Jilamara Arts and Crafts Association	Air conditioner Installation and Maintenance	2 326
Jilamara Arts and Crafts Association	Screen Printing Facility	10 000
Milingimbi Art and Culture Aboriginal Corporation	Purchase and install Dehumidifiers and air conditioners	9 920
Roper Gulf Regional Council	Numbulwar AFL Oval Upgrade	7 010
Roper Gulf Regional Council	Greening Larrimah	10 000
West Arnhem Regional Council	Lighting for Warruwi Community Recreation Hall	8 243
West Arnhem Regional Council	Jabiru Child Care - Outdoor Learning Resources	8 741
West Arnhem Regional Council	Jabiru Skate Park Upgrade	9 738
West Arnhem Regional Council	Jabiru Library- IT Resources Upgrade and Shelving	10 000
TOTAL ARNHEM		79 078

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$	
	BARKLY		
Arlpwe Artists Aboriginal Corporation	New sewing machines, plug mill for pottery training and engraved interpretive plaques signage	9 310	
Barkly Regional Council	Elliott Youth, Sport and Recreation Barunga Basketball Competition	9 800	
Teachabout Inc	Wet Season Program 2017	5 721	
Tennant Creek Child Care Services	From Garden to Kitchen	5 339	
Tennant Creek Playgroup	Investigative/Sensory Play Resources	5 169	
Tennant Creek Speedway Club	Purchase of Pump for Water Truck Spray actuators for Dust Suppression Improvement	2 974	
Urapuntja Health Service Aboriginal Corporation	Urapuntja Health Festival 2017 - Supply of portable toilets for the duration of the festival	7 040	
TOTAL BARKLY		45 353	

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
	CENTRAL	
Aileron Bush Club	13th Annual Aileron Bush Weekend	7 305
Alice Springs Golf Club Inc	Alice Springs Junior Golf Competition and Golf Camp	9 316
Alice Springs Quilting Club Inc	Let's Quilt – Machine Quilting Techniques Workshop	3 000
Alice Springs Radio Controlled Car Club	Signage Installation	3 077
Better Bodies Association Inc	Women's Healthy Communities	8 640
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress Aboriginal Corporation	Wolves of Street Alice Springs (2nd Annual Championships)	2 211
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress Aboriginal Corporation	Stress Less in the Park - Mental Health Week 2017	2 910
Central Australian Art Society Incorporated	The 40th Advocate Art Awards	3 765
Central Australian Rugby Football League	Uniforms for remote communities in Central Australia	6 224
Central Australian Territory Craft Inc	Revitalising entrance and sales area to Central Craft.	7 000
Central Australian Territory Craft Inc	Glass Kiln for Central Craft	7 407
Charity Bounce Ltd	Stand Tall Basketball Court	10 000
Childbirth Education Association Alice Springs	Birth Pools	1 735
Desert Song LTD	Horse therapy, adventure based training and a song writing workshop at a cattle station, Ambalindum.	10 000
Friends of the Larapinta Trail	Remote Areas Emergency Communications Equipment	2 315
Land for Wildlife/low Ecological Services Pty Ltd	Community engagement material and equipment for land of wildlife	3 807
Mental Health Association of Central Australia	Training Room Resources	6 401
Olive Pink Botanic Garden	Olive pink botanic garden community and garden WIFI access and server upgrade	5 987
Prison Fellowship Australia	Angel Tree	2 000
Red Centre Campdraft and Rodeo Association	Ablution Block	10 000
Territory Natural Resource Management Inc	Slater's skink Community Forum	8 160
The Central Australian Community Toy Library Inc	Toy Library resources refresh	8 700
Tourism Central Australia Incorporated	Purchase and installation of a handle powered audio sign	7 246
TOTAL CENTRAL		137 206

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
KATHERINE		
Historical Society of Katherine	Katherine Museum Catering Equipment	6 143
Katherine and District Show Society Inc	46 Heavy duty double jumbo toilet role holders	10 000
Katherine and District Show Society Inc	Boom Gates	10 000
Katherine and District Show Society Inc	Soap dispensers and hand dryers in each toilet block	10 000
Katherine Junior Rugby League	Getting back to basics	5 000
Katherine Junior Rugby League	Purchasing 2 large refrigerators for safe storage of food and drinks	7 525
Katherine Rugby Union Incorporated	Purchase a PA system	4 184
Katherine Volunteer Unit (NTES)	Illumination	3 000
Katherine Volunteer Unit (NTES)	Reaching Out	3 257
Katherine Volunteer Unit (NTES)	Purchasing PPE Kit Bags and 3L Hydration Packs.	9 050
Motor Vehicle Enthusiasts Club Incorporated	MVEC Outdoor functions equipment	5 444
Network Tindal Incorporated	Twilight Community Fair 2017	8 992
Ngaliwurru-Wuli Association	Football Travel Assistance (Diversionary activity for Paul Lee Harrington)	4 926
Roper Gulf Regional Council	AFL and Softball oval watering system Upgrade in Barunga	9 688
Roper Gulf Regional Council	Road safety improvements to Manyallaluk NT	10 000
Victoria Daly Regional Council	Pine Creek Goldrush Festival	10 000
TOTAL KATHERINE		117 209

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
	MULTI REGION	
Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance NT (AMSANT)	Equipment Support for e-Health Team	8 878
Alice Springs Volunteer Unit (NTES) Inc	Resilience Building Project	3 457
ARLC NT Limited	Referee Communication gear kits	9 000
Autism Northern Territory Inc	My ASD Story	9 600
Basketball NT Inc	BNT- Equipment for high performance programs	2 684
Darwin Camera Club Inc.	Replace carpet on walls of photo hut	1 438
Douglas Daly Playgroup	Large outside play equipment	2 494
Look Good, Feel Better	Look Good Feel Better Regional	6 164
Motor Vehicle Enthusiasts Club Incorporated	Air Compressor	8 059
North Australian Canine Association Inc T/S DogsNT	Refurbishment of Office at Winnellie Dog Show Grounds	6 576

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Northern Territory AIDS and Hepatitis Council Inc	SWOPNT & Touching Base	1 500
Northern Territory Multiple Birth Club Inc	Meals for New Multiples -Deliver homestyle cooked meals and a small amount of groceries to help the family in adjusting to their new life with Multiples.	980
Northern Territory Multiple Birth Club Inc	Playgroups and Guest Speakers	1 510
Northern Territory SES Volunteers Association	Covering the NT	3 575
Scouts Association of Australia Northern Territory Branch	Scouts NT- Branch Headquarters Computer Equipment	2 645
Smile a Mile Fun Bus and Toy Library Inc	New Toys, Play Equipment and Recycled Mats	9 327
Southern Districts Football Club	Computer and Printer Upgrade	5 085
Sports Medicine Australia - NT Branch	Purchase of 2 Defibrillators	4 500
The Scout Association of the NT - Howard Springs	4WD Training for the adult leaders	4 600
Triathlon Association of the Northern Territory	Purchase of mountain bikes for loan in program sessions	4 995
Triathlon Association of the Northern Territory	Purchase of track bikes for cycling program	10 000
TOTAL MULTI REGION		107 067

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
NORTHERN		
Acacia Hills Motocross Association	Special needs motocross riders	10 000
Acacia Hills Motocross Association	Coaching Clinic - 10 x Club Riders to attend an International Champion's Coaching Clinic	10 000
Acacia Hills Volunteer Bushfire Brigade	Safety and Environmental Health - Provide a safety barrier between the area the Fire Fighter's children play in and the car park	9 779
Adelaide River Community Craft Market Inc	Rosella Festival at "the River"	9 973
ARLC NT Limited	Playing uniforms for NT rugby League academy and Women's teams	8 833
Australian School of Meditation and Yoga	Yoga Day Festival 2017	10 000
Australian Volunteer Coast Guard NTF1	Upgrade of Radio and Communication Equipment	9 147
Australian Volunteer Coast Guard NTF1	Upgrade of training and presentation equipment	9 533

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Batchelor Museum Development Association Incorporated	Tree removal safety project	3 300
Berrimah Riding Club	Dressage Trailer	4 000
Browns Mart Arts Ltd	Lighting Equipment for Courtyard Room	9 764
Browns Mart Arts Ltd	To improve the venue marketing resources and presentation package	9 982
Bushfire NT Volunteer Training Brigade Inc	Computer Software needs	1 800
Camp Quality Limited	Camp Quality NT Kid's Camp	7 000
Canine Expo	Replacement of older equipment and purchase of new equipment to improve facilities	2 537
Canine Expo	Fencing/ Ring Equipment	2 682
Corrugated Iron Youth Arts Inc	Free family show	10 000
Council on the Ageing NT Inc (COTA)	Phone and teleconference system	4 106
Council on the Ageing NT Inc (COTA)	Dementia Friendly Signage	10 000
Council on the Ageing NT Inc (COTA)	Seniors Expo 2017	10 000
Cox Country Club Inc	Mandorah Ukulele and Folk Festival (MUFF 5)	10 000
Cruising Yacht Association of the NT	2017 Darwin Dili Yacht Rally	10 000
Darwin Cabaret and Burlesque Collective	Portable Stage	5 753
Darwin City Brass Band Association Inc	Recarpeting of the DCBB band hall at 2 Abala Road Marrara	9 788
Darwin Film Society Inc	AED Defibrillator	2 650
Darwin Film Society Inc	Dining Deck Permanent Lighting	4 297
Darwin Film Society Inc	Soft Fall Rubber Surfacing	7 205
Darwin Game Fishing Club Inc	2017 Junior NT Barramundi Classic	8 000
Darwin Ladies Kennel Club	Junior Handler Training Seminar	1 028
Darwin Ladies Kennel Club	Purchase exhibition show rings and indoor flooring	9 710
Darwin Rollergirls Incorporated	Portable PA, AV and support package	9 404
Darwin Symphony Orchestra Inc	Staging Risers Replacement	7 219
Darwin Symphony Orchestra Inc	Volunteer and Marketing Grant	9 856
Darwin Visual Arts Association Inc.	Events equipment needs- P.A (Public Address sound system), tables, chairs and fridge.	6 309

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Darwin Visual Arts Association Inc.	IT Infrastructure	8 108
Darwin Volunteer Unit (NTES) Association Incorporation	Accredited Training for Volunteers	1 700
Darwin Volunteer Unit (NTES) Association Incorporation	Licences for 3 volunteers to obtain Medium Rigid and 2 volunteers to obtain forklift	2 310
Darwin Volunteer Unit (NTES) Association Incorporation	Shade Structure	2 350
Dream Calisthenics Dance Club Inc	Equipment	7 658
Dundee Social & Recreation Club Inc	Renewal of Club Signage and Information Board	3 850
Filipino Basketball League of the Northern Territory	Shortfall in Court Hire Cost (Marrara Basketball Stadium), uniform cost and training aids.	2 500
Freds Pass Positive Dog Training Club	Training seminar	2 050
Freds Pass Positive Dog Training Club	Purchase of a large cage star trolley for transporting bollards and bases onto the grounds.	2 138
Freds Pass Positive Dog Training Club	Replacement of old Agility Equipment	2 400
Freds Pass Rural Community Show Inc	Electrical Infrastructure Upgrade	4 500
Freds Pass Rural Community Show Inc	Volunteer and Marketing Assistance	8 537
Freds Pass Rural Community Show Inc	Volunteer and Marketing requirements	8 926
Girl Guides NT Incorporated	Install a shade cloth in the courtyard area of Monkani Guide Hall in Moil.	5 000
Girl Guides NT Incorporated	Monkani Guide Hall Shed Upgrade	8 380
Girl Guides NT Incorporated	Stairs and Signage	10 000
Gray Child Care Centre	Gray Child Care Centre Water Creek	10 000
Gray Community Garden	2 x LED Vandal Proof Solar Lights and associated Solar array setup for Garden events	6 946
Greek Traditional Dancing Group	Greek Traditional Dance Training	10 000
Gymnastics Association of the Northern Territory	Replacement Foam for Pits	9 500
Happy Yess Community Arts	Upgrade analogue desk to digital desk in line with current standards	8 650
Historical Society of the Northern Territory	History House Set-Up	9 356
Humpty Doo Community & Childcare Centre	Build four outside play structures	8 309
Humpty Doo Community & Childcare Centre	Painting	10 000

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Indoor Sports NT Incorporated	Score Boards and Laptop Controllers	2 052
Kiwanis Club of Casuarina Incorporated	Hosting Kiwanis National Convention in Darwin 2017	10 000
Lions Club of Darwin Nightcliff Inc	purchase a extreme marquee with Lions Club branding	2 523
Litchfield Rugby League Club Incorporated	Upgrade of the score board – Litchfield Bears (Fred's Pass Reserve)	10 000
Livingstone Recreation Reserve	Underground Services/Community Room Engineered Drawings	9 652
Malak Family Centre Inc	Outdoor area refurbishment	7 032
McMinns Lagoon Reserve Association Inc	McMinns Lagoon Signage, Engaging our Community	2 552
Melaleuca Refugee Centre Torture and Trauma Service of the NT	Coordination of Top End World Refugee Day 2017	9 840
National Trust of Australia (NT)	Fence and signs for the Road Masters House Museum	4 034
Nightcliff Arts, Music & Culture	Storage and Signage	10 000
Nightcliff Cricket Club	Purchase of pitch rolling equipment	10 000
Nightcliff University Tigers Hockey Club Incorporated	BBQ, club trailer, banners and signage	8 397
Northern Territory Badminton Association Inc	NTBA SBACS	9 683
Northern Territory Calisthenics Association Inc	NT Calisthenics Representative Junior Teams	10 000
Northern Territory Calisthenics Association Inc	NT Calisthenics Representative Sub- Juniors Team	10 000
Northern Territory Field and Game Association Incorporated	NT F&G Website	10 000
NT Avicultural Society	Purchase of show cages and advertising	3 000
NT Bushfire Volunteers Association Inc	Set up professional website with laptop and printer to help promote the Association	10 000
NT Police & Citizens Youth Club Associations Inc	Upgrading Gymnastics equipment	8 876
NT Police & Citizens Youth Club Associations Inc	Tack shed equipment	10 000
NT Water Ski Association	Participation Safety for the Community - Safety Equipment and education for Water Sport	7 166
Palmerston & Rural Seniors Committee	Seniors Fortnight Event- Crab Claw Island Tour & Lunch	8 900
Palmerston and Regional Basketball Association	Step up your game - after school basketball competition	10 000
Palmerston Cricket Club Inc	Purchase sport equipment	9 750
Palmerston Men's Shed Inc	Welding Equipment - Compressor	6 983

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$	
Palmerston Rugby Union Club Incorporated	Purchase and install a water bubbler, ice machine and a new hot water system for the Clubhouse.	8 000	
Palmerston Rugby Union Club Incorporated	Establish a female change room and relocate and refurbish the gym	10 000	
PAWS Darwin	Education in the Parks	6 200	
Resplendent Calisthenics College	Equipment	4 028	
RotaKat	RotaKat Service Grant	6 000	
Satu Bulan Theatre Co	The Age of Bones Theatre Production	10 000	
Scouts Association of Australia Northern Territory Branch	Storage of Historical Records	999	
Scouts Association of Australia Northern Territory Branch	Replacement of window louvers at Alawa Scout Hall	5 576	
SIDS and Kids Northern Territory	Enhancing the SIDS and Kids NT grieving space and resources for families & friends	4 257	
Southern Districts Cricket Club Inc	Club memorabilia & History	6 878	
St Vincent de Paul Society (NT) Inc	Vinnies NT - Enabling the information age project	5 460	
Territory Quad Association	Starting Gates to assist the club with compliance to National Standards	10 000	
The Darwin Festival Limited	Darwin Festival Dance Floor - Flooring for the Community	7 730	
The Friends of Darwin Symphony Orchestra Inc	Repair of Violin	1 650	
The Friends of Darwin Symphony Orchestra Inc	Purchase of Tubular Bells (Concert Chimes)	10 000	
The OTIS Foundation	Expansion of Cullen Bay Breast Cancer Retreat (Darwin)	7 400	
The Palmerston Game Fishing Club Incorporated	PGFC Outdoor BBQ	3 778	
The Palmerston Game Fishing Club Incorporated	PGFC Outdoor Marquees	5 000	
The Palmerston Game Fishing Club Incorporated	PGFC Buddy Boats Day	5 000	
The Palmerston Game Fishing Club Incorporated	the Sunsafe Fishing Shirts for the event SWB Barra Challenge	5 000	
The Palmerston Game Fishing Club Incorporated	Junior Angler Education Clinic	10 000	
The Royal Agricultural Society of the Northern Territory	New and maintenance of poultry cages for exhibition at the 2017 Royal Darwin Show	9 000	
Top End Calisthenics Club Inc	New costumes and storage shed hire	8 512	
Top End Calisthenics Club Inc	Coach Mentor Support and Training for skill and choreography development	10 000	
Top End Moto Cross Club	Grandstand Seating	8 660	

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Top End Practical Shooting	Irrigation System for Main Complex	8 992
League Inc (TEPSL)	Areas	3 , , _
U3A Darwin Inc	Trip to Mary River - To encourage the elderly to go out and enjoy	1 650
Wagait Shire Emergency Management Recovery Committee	Provide a UHF CB repeater at Wagait Beach for Community use.	3 600
Woodroffe Child Care Centre	Purchase a defibrillator and include training package	2 775
YMCA of the Top End	Shed Build	3 805
Community Services	Siled Build	3 003
TOTAL NORTHERN		797 213
TOTAL NORTHERN TERRITOR	1 283 126	

Table 7: Quick Grants Approved in 2016-17

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$		
QUICK GRANTS				
Baptist Care Northern Territory	Territory Walks Against Hunger - Foodbank NT	9 682		
Baptist Care Northern Territory	Warehouse Equipment - Foodbank NT	23 500		
Barkly Landcare and Conservation Association Inc	Farming Smarter - Connecting Barkly pastoralists to information in a remote landscape & Digital Producer from Desert Channels Group & Printing of booklets.	2 000		
Basketball NT Inc	Coach Development - Australian Basketball Challenge and Coaching Symposium	4 570		
Cambodian Australian Community Association of the NT Inc	Bonn Pchum Cambodian Cultural Festival	4 314		
Catholic Care NT	Mental Health Week 'Community Expo'	3 100		
Central Australian Aviation Museum	Seven Mile Aerodrome	770		
Central Australian Football Club	Redtails/ Pinktails Right Tracks Program	165 000		
Darwin Multicultural Brass Band Inc	Set up Costs	1 650		
Dymocks Children's Charities Limited	The Duck Library	1 900		
Enterprise Learning Projects	Yarralin Creative Annual Calendar / Kids on Country	8 050		
Gap Community Child Care Centre Inc	Safe Sleeping	4 603		
Gap Community Child Care Centre Inc	Cool Drinking Water	8 678		

Organisation	Grant Purpose	Amount \$
Genealogical Society of the	GSNT Relocation to Unit 4, 84 Smith St	6 936
Northern Territory Inc	Darwin NT 0800	
Girl Guides NT Incorporated	Monkani Guide Hall Stage 3	59 269
Happy Migrant Social and Learning Centre	Rental Payment	840
HPA Incorporated	Celebrating 'Territory Day 2016" trip to Crocodylus Park	4 740
HPA Incorporated	Exchange Program between HPA Incorporated and the Handicapped Peoples Association of Kalymnos	30 000
Indigenous Remote Communications Association	18th National Remote Indigenous Media Festival	20 000
Indigenous Soccer Academy Aboriginal Corporation	National Indigenous Football Championships 2016	40 000
Lutheran Child Care Centre	Garden Landscaping	8 449
Lutheran Child Care Centre	Building of outdoor storage shed for resources	17 027
National Trust of Australia (NT)	The Giese Legacy at Audit House	2 080
Northern Cowboys Association	Mataranka Rodeo	10 400
Northern Territory Badminton Association Inc	Lighting upgrade to Darwin Badminton Centre for National Tournament	6 706
Northern Territory Shelter Inc	Katherine Homelessness Day	4 000
NT Thai Association	Loi Krathong Festival of Light	2 500
Smile a Mile Fun Bus and Toy Library Inc	Smile-a-Mile National Children's Week Celebration October 2016	5 496
Tangentyere Council Aboriginal Corporation	Yarrenyty Arltere Artists Print Workshop	5 000
Territory Gymnastics Academy Inc	Club Travel to Team Future - Canberra	2 240
Territory Gymnastics Academy Inc	Singapore International 2016	5 000
Tracy Village Rebels Baseball Inc	Ground Maintenance	55 000
TOTAL QUICK GRANTS		523 500

Table 8 provides details of Community Support Contributions made in 2016-17 from licensed clubs.

**Table 8: Community Support Contributions from Licensed Clubs** 

Premises	Cash Contribution \$	In Kind Contribution \$	Total Contribution \$	Net GM Revenue \$	Contribution %
Alice Springs Memorial Club Inc	0	0	0	46 771	0%
Alice Springs RSL Club	0	31 264	31 264	138 139	23%
Alyangula Golf Club	19 890	155	20 045	150 333	13%
Alyangula Recreation Club	0	0	0	129 591	0%
Buff Club	25 450	4 582	30 032	609 747	5%
Casuarina All Sports Club	344 939	101 026	445 966	4 543 974	10%
Cazalys Palmerston	735 002	55 564	790 566	3 618 945	22%
Club Eastside	39 518	3 585	43 103	1 432 714	3%
Darwin Bowls and Social Club Inc	0	10 743	10 743	25 261	43%
Darwin Golf Club Inc	4 410	232 146	236 556	102 577	231%
Darwin North RSL Services Club	400	2 300	2 700	16 226	17%
Darwin RSL Services And Social Club	28 412	3 270	31 682	1 436 967	2%
Darwin Trailer Boat Club	24 000	66 300	90 300	76 925	117%
Gillen Club	88 051	167 160	255 211	1 978 410	13%
Gove Country Golf Club	0	6 480	6 480	19 175	34%
Humpty Doo & Rural Area Golf Club Inc	455	22 300	22 755	238 525	10%
Jabiru Sports & Social Club	32 996	420	33 416	486 070	7%
Katherine Club	175 843	22 375	198 218	1 615 891	12%
Katherine Country Club	524 958	15 951	540 909	1 827 282	30%

Premises	Cash Contribution \$	In Kind Contribution \$	Total Contribution \$	Net GM Revenue \$	Contribution %
Nightcliff Sports Club	212 928	262 430	475 358	1 231 788	39%
Palmerston Golf & Country Club Inc	52 184	180 651	232 835	1 420 697	16%
Palmerston Sports Club	302 683	84 868	387 552	3 699 737	10%
PINT Club	15 906	8 200	24 106	302 882	8%
Sporties Club Inc	5 374	4 393	9 767	305 654	3%
St Mary's Football Sporting and Social Club	1 299	37 453	38 752	337 084	11%
Tennant Creek Memorial Club Inc	169 374	29 230	198 604	1 239 704	16%
The Arnhem Club	402 885	329 789	732 674	1 718 706	43%
Tracy Village Social & Sports Club	11 632	400 513	412 144	2 634 723	16%
TOTAL	3 218 590	2 083 147	5 301 737	31 384 498	17%